City of Durham
Charter Trust for the City of Durham

Ref: PN 18 April 2012

To: The Mayor and Members of the
CHARTER TRUST FOR THE CITY OF DURHAM
(Councillors L Thomson, J Blakey, J Chaplow,
J Cordon, R Crooks, N Foster, D Freeman, G Holland,
K Holroyd, A Hopgood, N Martin, E Mavin, D Morgan,
B Myers, M Plews, M Simmons, D J Southwell,
D Stoker, P Taylor, J Turnbull, M Wilkes, J Wilkinson,
M Williams, M Wood and C Woods).

Dear Sir/Madam

A Meeting of the CHARTER TRUST FOR THE CITY OF DURHAM will be held in the Council
Chamber, County Hall, Durham, on Thursday 26 April 2012 at 4.30 pm.

BUSINESS

1. Apologies for Absence.
Minutes of the Meeting held on 18 January 2012. (Pages 1 - 4)

Nominations for the Mayor and Deputy Mayor prior to their formal
appointment at the Annual Meeting on 23 May 2012.

Mayor - Travelling and Subsistence. (Pages 5 - 8)
Renewal of Insurance Policy. (Pages 9 - 10)
Royal Marine Band Service. (Pages 11 - 12)

N o o b

Audit for the year ended 31 March 2011. (Pages 13 - 36)

Yours faithfully

Clerk

17 Claypath, Durham, DH1 1RH
Tel: (0191) 3727655 Fax: (0191) 3860625
Web Site: www.durham.gov.uk




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 2

CHARTER TRUST FOR THE CITY OF DURHAM

At the Meeting of the Charter Trust for the City of Durham held in the Main Hall -
Town Hall, Durham, on Wednesday 18 January 2012 at 4.00 pm

Present: The Right Worshipful the Mayor of Durham, Councillor Les Thomson (in
the Chair) and Councillors G Holland, K Holroyd, A Hopgood, N Martin, M Simmons,
D J Southwell, J Turnbull, M Wilkes, J Wilkinson and C Woods

1 Apologies for Absence

Apologies for Absence were received from Councillors Blakey, Chaplow, Cordon,
Crooks, Freeman, Mavin, Morgan, Myers, Plews, Stoker, Taylor, Williams and Wood.

2 Recording of Proceedings

Resolved: That the Charter Trustees consent to the taking of photographs during
the Meeting.

3 Minutes of the Meetings held on 19 July 2011 and 16 November 2011

The Minutes of the Meetings held on 19 July 2011 and 16 November 2011 were
confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Mayor.

4 To swear in Mr Colin Lidster as a Member of the Mayor's Bodyguard
Mr. C. Lidster, was duly sworn in as a Member of the Mayor’s Bodyguard.
Trustees and Officers warmly applauded.
The Meeting adjourned at 4.10 pm and reconvened at 4.30 pm.
Councillor Southwell entered the Meeting.
5 Minutes

The Mayor advised Trustees that David Marrs had accepted the position of Pant
Master.

6 Revenue Outturn for the Quarter ended 31 December 2011 and
Projected Outturn to 31 March 2012

The Treasurer submitted a comprehensive report to provide information on the
actual expenditure compared to the profiled budget for the period ending 31
December 2011 and the forecast of expenditure to 31 March 2012 in comparison to
the 2011/12 original budget.

Page 1



The Treasurer advised Trustees that the forecast underspend was in the region of
£7160.00 which would contribute to the reserve figure but this figure could be subject
to change as there was still 3 months remaining.

Trustees sought clarification if there was any further functions planned which would
reduce this underspend.

Trustees were advised that there were some functions coming up which would use
some of the underspend.

Resolved: (i) That the outturn position for the quarter ended 31 December 2011 be
noted.

(ii) That the forecast outturn to 31 March 2012 be noted.
7 Revenue Budget 2012/13

The Treasurer submitted a comprehensive report to provide information to enable
Charter Trustees to approve the appropriate budget requirements for 2012/13 and
approve the basic level of council tax required.

The Treasurer circulated at the meeting a schedule with further options of Council
Tax for consideration, a copy of which is attached. He advised Trustees that the
current Council Tax level was currently set at £4.29 and that Trustees needed to
consider having monies for 2013/14 as they could partially move into this period if a
Town Council was established.

Trustees discussed training for current staff in preparation for the Town Council. It
was felt that this should be left to the Town Council if established.

Trustees considered all the Council Tax options and discussed the possibility of any
monies that would be left if a Town Council was established been split pro rata
between the Town Council and the Parish Council’s in the former City of Durham
District. It was noted that there was a possibility that not all areas of the former
district would be parished. The Clerk advised Trustees that she had contacted the
Boundary Commission on this matter and would advise Trustees of the outcome.

Councillor Southwell moved and Councillor Hopgood seconded Option 2 which
would set a Council Tax level of £3.80.

Councillor Woods moved Option 4 which would set a Council Tax level of £3.60 and
Councillor Wilkes moved Option 3 which would set a Council Tax level of £3.70. In
the absence of a Seconder Trustees voted on Option 2 which was agreed.
Resolved: (i) That the budget requirement for 2012/13 be approved.

(ii) That the basic level of council tax at £3.80 be approved (Option 2).

Page 2



8 Any Other Business

Trustees considered how they could protect the position of the Mayor for the City of
Durham if a Town Council was established and discussed the possibility of holding a
public meeting to consider the position of Mayor for the City of Durham.

Trustees agreed that they needed to look into the legal position regarding the
protection of the Mayor before the arrangements were made to hold a public
meeting.

Resolved: That the Clerk investigate the legal position and report back to Trustees.

Meeting Terminated at 5.15 pm

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Agenda Item 4

CHARTER TRUST FOR THE CITY OF DURHAM

26 April 2012

Mayor - Travelling and Subsistence

City of Durham

Report of Sharon Spence, Clerk to the Charter Trustees

Purpose of the Report

1. To propose the introduction of an expenses form for use by the Mayor,
as suggested by the Auditors.

2. A draft form is attached at Appendix A. The proposed travelling and
expenses and subsistence allowances for the Mayor are set out on the
reverse of the form and are presented for consideration by Trustees.
These are in line with those available to Members of Durham County
Council.

Recommendations
1. To ensure that the Charter Trustees operate a clear and transparent

system for the payment of travelling and subsistence, the proposed
scheme be introduced with accompanying form.

Contact: [Sharon Spence] Tel: 0191 383 3507

Page 5



Appendix 1: Implications

Finance — To ensure a clear and transparent system of payment of
expenses.

Staffing - None

Risk - None

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty - None

Accommodation - None

Crime and Disorder - None

Human Rights - None

Consultation - None

Procurement - None

Disability Issues - None

Legal Implications - None

Page 6



PD2-253

CHARTER TRUST FOR THE CITY OF DURHAM

PARTICULARS OF TRAVELLING AND

SUBSISTENCE ALLOWANCE OF MAYOR/OFFICERS

Appendix A

Name of Claimant (BLOCK LETTERS) Dr/Mr/Mrs/Miss (Delete not applicable) ................c.coo i
Private Address (BLOCK LETTERS)

Official poSItioN ... ..o i

Grade ...

Payroll Reference NUMID T ... . e e e e e e e e e e e e e e

Service ...

Place atleNAEA ... ...

FOr (PUIDOSE) ..o e e e e e e e

Times of BUSINESS: From ... e
Signature of Claimant ... ...
Certified Correct ...

TO
Date ...
(Clerk to Charter Trust/Chief Finance Officer)

Dates of
Departure
& Return

Mode of

Time of Departure from | Conveyance (if
& Return to home or rail, state type &

usual place of business class

of ticket)

Details of
Journey

Travelling
Expenses

Subsistence
Allowance

Departure Return

From Return

(For scale allowances see overleaf)

Total

Comp
any

Cost Centre Account Code Analysis Code

Project Task

CR £

Amount VAT

p Code

Verified Certified For Payment

VALUE ADDED TAX

TOTAL

Page 7




PD2-253

TRAVELLING EXPENSES AND SUBSISTENCE ALLOWANCES FOR MAYOR/OFFICERS OF THE CHARTER TRUST
FOR THE CITY OF DURHAM (from 1 April 2011) (The Deputy Mayor acting for the Mayor)

A.TRAVELLING ALLOWANCES

1.

TRAVELLING ALLOWANCES TO PLACES OUTSIDE THE ADMINISTRATIVE COUNTY OF DURHAM

TRAVELLING ALLOWANCES

(1
@
0]

(i

()
(&)

Ordinary rail fare.
SUPPLEMENTAL ALLOWANCE
Sleeping berth charge.

Seat reservations.

. OTHER RULES

Rate of travel by taxi-cab — in cases of urgency or where no public transport is reasonably available, the amount of the actual fare
and any reasonable gratuity paid.

The Mayor/officer will be entitled to standard class fares only. In all cases, entitlement will relate to any available cheap rate or to
the ordinary fare, whichever is the less.

Please note that travel warrants must be obtained from the Clerk to the Charter Trustees for all rail travel.

B.

1.

SUBSISTENCE ALLOWANCES FOR JOURNEYS TO PLACES OUTSIDE THE ADMINISTRATIVE AREAS OF COUNTY DURHAM

Absence overnight from the usual place of residence:

No additional reimbursement for meals taken on a train.

London £120.31 a receipt for accommodation must be produced
Elsewhere in UK £105.49 a receipt for accommodation must be produced

Where there is no overnight stay:

Maximum
Allowance Minimum Absence Amount

Claimable

£

Breakfast 2 hours which must be before 11.00 am 6.51
Lunch 2 hours which must include12.00 noon to 2.00 pm 8.94
Tea 3 hours which must include 3.00 pm to 6.00 pm 3.52
Evening Meal 3 hours which must be after 7.00 pm 11.07

Period of absence in excess of 24 hours.

Allowances determined under B1 shall be deemed to cover a continuous period of absence of 24 hours. Where the total length of
absence exceeds 24 hours or a multiple thereof, additional meals allowances maybe claimed in accordance with the meal rates and
time limits in B2.

Period of absence overnight but not over 24 hours. Payment of the overnight allowances will only be made on production of a receipt
for accommodation.

Additional ground rules in respect of B1 to B4:

(a)

(b)

Payment of overnight allowances as in B1 is subject to the production of an invoice for accommodation. An overnight allowance
will not be paid unless an invoice is produced, the claim in such circumstances being limited to meal allowances in accordance
with B2 and B3.

Mayor/officers may claim full reimbursement of the reasonable cost (including VAT) of a main meal (breakfast, lunch or dinner)
taken on a train, subject to a receipt being attached to the claim. An allowance cannot be claimed for the relevant meal and
where this occurs in a 24 hour period covered by overnight subsistence, the allowance for the relevant meals as in B2 above shall
be deducted from the overnight allowance.

Out of pocket expenses:
Where the fee for a residential course or conference includes accommodation and meals, an out-of-pocket expense allowance can be
claimed instead of the above subsistence allowances as follows:

£ per day

Courses or conferences within the UK 5.00
The day of arrival and departure are counted as one day. In addition meal allowances could be claimed in these circumstances to the
outward and return journeys in accordance with the meal rates and time limits in B2

Travel outside the UK:
Mayor/officers may claim for reimbursement of reasonable accommodation and meal costs but only on the basis of receipts and
invoices submitted with the claim.

ARRANGEMENTS IN RESPECT OF JOURNEYS WITHIN THE ADMINISTRATIVE AREAS OF COUNTY DURHAM

In accordance with the intentions of the 1997 Single Status agreement, where employees necessarily incur additional expenses as a
consequence of working away from their headquarters, the actual cost of any qualifying meals (or in appropriate circumstances out-of-
pocket expenses) will be reimbursed subject to the production of a receipt. The maximum amount to be reimbursed will be in
accordance with the relevant allowances in B2 or B5. This paragraph also applies to the Mayor.

Page 8



Agenda Item 5

CHARTER TRUST FOR THE CITY OF DURHAM
26 April 2012

Renewal of Insurance Policy

City of Durham

Report of Sharon Spence, Clerk to the Charter Trustees

Purpose of the Report

1 The purpose of this report is to inform Trustees that the insurance
renewal premium for 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 is £1,881.56.

Background

2 The sums insured have been uplifted by the appropriate index-linking
percentages for 2012 (3%). The invoice has been passed for payment.

Recommendation and Reason

3. The action taken be endorsed.

Contact: [Sharon Spence] Tel: 0191 383 3507

Page 9



Appendix 1: Implications

Finance — As set out in the report. Budget provision has been made.

Staffing - None

Risk - None

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty - None

Accommodation - None

Crime and Disorder - None

Human Rights - None

Consultation - None

Procurement - None

Disability Issues - None

Legal Implications - None

Page 10



Agenda Item 6

CHARTER TRUST FOR THE CITY OF DURHAM
26 April 2012

Royal Marine Band Service

City of Durham

Report of Sharon Spence, Clerk to the Charter Trustees

Purpose of the Report

1

The Mayor recently contacted all Trustees suggesting that the Charter
Trustees consider offering the Freedom of the City to the Royal Marine
Band Service in the Queens Jubilee Year. Although the Mayor
received only support for this proposal one Member did raise the issue
with the Clerk concerning the Services links to Durham.

Background

2

As you are aware HMS BULWARK recently exercised their right to
march through the City of Durham. The Royal Marine Band (Plymouth)
had travelled from Plymouth and back in that day to be in Durham for
this event, when we had failed to secure a Band for the BULWARK
march.

In respect of links with the Service, Durham already has links with the
Royal Marines through HMS BULWARK. Durham has a Brass Band
Heritage. Durham schools provide for future generations of musicians
and the Royal Marine Band Service have already agreed to come to
Durham to undertake workshops with young people and indeed a
concert for Armed Forces Day.

Lieutenant Colonel NJ Grace BMus(Hons) FLCM LRSM Royal
Marines, the Principal Director of Music, Royal Marine Band Service, is
also planning a major concert in Durham Cathedral in 2014 and an
event in Durham Castle next year.

Recommendation and reason

3

Instructions are requested as to whether the Charter Trustees would
wish to offer the Freedom of the City to the Royal Marine Band Service.

Page 11



Appendix 1: Implications

Finance — There would be a cost to holding a meeting of the Charter
Trustees to grant the Freedom and associated costs of a plaque. Those
costs can be met from existing budgets.

Staffing — Staff time will be involved in the organisation of the Meeting
but the costs can be met from existing budgets.

Risk — None.

Equality and Diversity/Public Sector Equality Duty — None.
Accommodation — None.

Crime and Disorder — None.

Human Rights — None.

Consultation — None.

Procurement — None.

Disability Issues — None.

Legal Implications — None.

Contact: [Sharon Spence] Tel: 0191 383 3507

Page 12



Charter Trust for the City of Durham
26 April 2012

Audit for the year ended 31 March
2011

Agenda Iltem 7

City of Durham

Report of Jeff Garfoot, Treasurer

INTRODUCTION

1.

BDO LLP (the external auditor to the Charter Trust) has completed
their audit of the annual return for the financial year ending 31 March
2011 and instructed that their audit opinion and findings are reported to
Charter Trustees in order to approve the final, audited annual return.

Their full report, including a copy of the annual return, is attached as
Appendix B.

AUDIT FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The auditor raised two minor issues which resulted in the annual return
being qualified. The issues were reported as follows:

Issue 1 - Overdrawn bank account

3.1. At 31 March 2011 the Trust’s bank account was reported as
overdrawn which contravenes Schedule 1, Paragraph 2 (3) of
the Local Government Act 2003.

3.2. The auditor recommended that a regular budget monitoring
exercise be undertaken to ensure that sufficient resources are
available before committing future expenditure.

Issue 2 - Expenditure Powers

3.3. The issue raised by the auditor was that donations relating to the
Mayor’s Appeal had been received into the Trust bank account
during the year then subsequently donated to charitable
organisations. The auditor states that the Trust is at risk of acting
outside of its legal powers.

3.4. The auditor recommended that expenditure powers are minuted

before incurring any expenditure, irrespective of how the
transactions are to be funded.

Page 13



MANAGEMENT COMMENTS

4. Management’s comments regarding the issues raised by the auditor
are set out below:

Issue 1 - Overdrawn bank account

4.1. Although the bank account was NOT overdrawn at 31 March
2011, the way in which the annual return has to be completed
resulted in a small negative cash balance of £17 being reported
(Line 8 of Section 1 of the annual return).

4.2. This was mainly due to several cheques produced during the
last few days of the year which remained unpresented at 31
March 2011. They had to be accounted for as if they had been
paid out of the bank account when completing the annual return.

4.3. Budget monitoring and forecast of outturn information is reported
to Trustees on a quarterly basis already.

Issue 2 - Expenditure Powers

4.4. Issue 2 relates to monies received in connection with the
Mayor’s nominated charities. Trustees may recall that prior to
June 2011 these monies were paid into the Trust’s main bank
account. This practice was revised in June 2011 and all such
monies are now paid into a separate bank account and
managed independently from Charter Trust business. The
matter was explained in full to the auditor and has now been
resolved.

CONCLUSION

5. The auditor’s recommendation relating to Issue 1 has already been
implemented and no further action is required. Issue 2 was resolved
during 2010/11 after a separate bank account was set up for monies
relating to the Mayor’s charity, which is managed independently from
Charter Trust affairs.

RECOMMENDATIONS

6. It is recommended that Charter Trustees approve the audited annual
return for 2010/11.

Contact: Beverley White, Tel. 03000 261900

Page 14



Appendix A

Risks and Implications

Finance

The report provides the conclusion of BDO’s audit of the annual report for
2010/11.

Staffing

Equality and Diversity

Accommodation

Crime and Disorder

Human Rights

Consultation

Procurement

Disability Discrimination Act

Legal Implications

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



Tel: +44 (0)23 8088 1700 Arcadia House

Fax: +44 (0)23 8088 1701 Maritime Walk
DX 2008 Southampton Ocean Village
www.bdo.co.uk Southampton SO14 3TL
Mrs S Spence 01 December 2011
Durham County Council our ref:  2011/A1/CHAR43/FINAL
County Hall .
DURHAM Dial: 023 8088 1700

Email: councilaudits@bdo.co.uk
County Durham

DH1 5UL

Dear Mrs Spence

The Charter Trustees for the City of Durham - Audit for the year ended 31 March 2011

We have now completed the above audit. Please find enclosed the following documents;

- Fee Note

- Notice of Conclusion of Audit

- Notes regarding the advertisement of the Conclusion of the Audit
- Issues arising from the audit

- Date selection form for 2011/12

- Contact details

- Survey 2010/ 11

- Annual Return

The enclosed annual return should be presented to the council/body/board, now that our audit opinion has
been given, and a minute should be made to show that the Annual Return has been approved and accepted
by the council/body/board. The issues arising report should also be presented to the council/body/board
and an action plan produced, if required, to indicate how the issues raised will be addressed. The annual
return and notice of conclusion of audit should then be displayed in a conspicuous place(s) for 14 days.

If you have any questions please contact Louise Nyland in the first instance.

Yours sincerely

’} . P?\/\,C-/-'\.J-IM

Paul Bricknell
For and on behalf of BDO LLP

Enc.

BDO LLP, a UK timited tiability partnership registered in England and Wales under number 0C305127, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company 7y
limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms. A list of members’ names is open to inspection at oqbage 17 &AL Y
registered office. 55 Baker Street, London W1U 7EU. BDO LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Services Authority to conduct investment business. ‘66



Tel: +44 (0)23 8088 1700 Arcadia House

Fax: +44 (0)23 8088 1701 Maritime Watk

Email: finance@bdo.co.uk Ocean Village

VAT Reg No 830 8470 32 Southampton 5014 3TL
www.bdo.co.uk DX 2008 Southampton

INVOICE

The Charter Trustees for the City of Dur
Durham County Council

1079362
01 December 2011
01 December 2011

Bitl Number:
Invoice Date:
Tax Point Date:

COUNTY HALL
Client Number: 0309129
PURHAM Project Number:
DR sUL Reference: 014344
Payment Terms: 14 Days
Page: , of |
£

Auditing the Annual Return for the year ended 31 March 2011
Standard fee for income/expenditure band £100,001-£200,000 550.00

Additional correspondence required in order to obtain information to complete the audit

1 letter @ £25 as notified

25.00
SUBTOTAL: 575.00
VAT @ 20.00%: 115.00
TOTAL AMOUNT DUE: £ 690.00

If you disagree with, or have queries on, an invoice we request that you notify us in writing within 7 days from
the invoice date, after which time we will assume that you have agreed its content.
We welcome payments by BACS - please see reverse for details. If paying by cheque, please make payable to BDO LLP.

BDO LLP, a UK timited liability partnership registered in England and Wales under number 0C305127, is a member of 800 International Limited, a UK company
limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms, A list of members’ names is open to inspection at our
registered office, 55 Baker Street, London W1U 7EU. BDO LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Services Authority to conduct investment business.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.

Piease detach the payment slip and return with your remittance

Client Number: 0309129

Bill Number: 1079362

Project Number:

Date:
Cheque Number:

Page 18

Please make cheques payable to: BDO LLP and send to the Partner hamed at the above address.
For BACS payments, quote invoice Number(s) to National Westminster Bank; Sort Code 560003; Account Number 0006501 3

Remittance Advice

Client Name: The Charter Trustees for the City of Dur

Partner Name: Thixton,Malcolm
Reference: 014344
Cheque Value:

5



Settlement Details

Westminster Bank Flc daily bank rate from the 15th day af
disagree with, or have any queries on, an invoice we request that v
invoice date, after which time we will assume that you have agre

Methods of Payment

e 8 & ©

Qur bank details are as follows:

Bank:
Branch:
Address:

Account Name:
Account Number:
Sort Code:

Swift Address:
IBAN:

Cheque payable to BDO LLP

BACS - direct bank transfer

CHAPS - same day UK bank transfer

Credit card - Visa, MasterCard, JCB, Switch, Solo, Visa Flectron, Maestro

National Westminster Bank Plc
St James’s & Piccadilly

PO Box 2 DG

208 Piccadilly

London

W1A 2DG

United Kingdom

BDO LLP

00065013

56-00-03

NWBK GB 2L
GB76NWBK56000300065013

When paying by bank transfer please quote vour account number and invoice number(s).

Page 19



The Charter Trustees for the City of Durham

~

NOTICE is hereby given that the audit for the
year ended 31 March 2011 was completed on

30 November 2011

and the accounts are now available for inspection by local electors
in accordance with Section 14 of the Audit Commission Act 1998.
The requisite information as defined by Section 13(4) of the Accounis and Audit
(England) Regulations 2011 isfis not” displayed alongside this notice
(* Please deleie as necessary)

If the requisite information is not displayed alongside
this nofice, it is available for inspection by appointment.

= N -

o arrenge & viewing please contact

hetween the hours of and
Dateo: 20

nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn

(Responsible Financial Officer)

Page 20






The Charter Trustees for the City of Durham 2

Introduction

The following matters have been raised to draw items to the attention of The Charter Trustees for the
City of Durham. These matters came to the attention of BDO LLP during the audit of the annual
return for the year ended 31 March 2011.

The audit of the annual return may not disclose all shortcomings of the systems as some matters may
not have come to the attention of the auditor. For this reason, the matters raised may not be the

only ones that exist.

The matters listed below are explained in further detail on the page(s) that follow;

e Overdrawn bank account - small body

e Expenditure powers

Page 22



The Charter Trustees for the City of Durham 3

The following issue(s) have resulted in the annual return being qualified. They indicate a
weakness in the body's procedures and require the body to take immediate action.

Overdrawn bank account - small body

What is the issue?

As at 31 March 2011 the body's current account was overdrawn.

Why has this issue been raised?

The body has contravened Sch 1, Para 2(3) of the Local Government Act 2003, where a Local Authority
may only borrow by way of temporary loan or overdraft, from a bank or otherwise sums which they
may temporarily require, without obtaining approval, for the purpose of defraying expenses pending
the receipt of revenues receivable by them in respect of the period of account in which those
expenses are chargeable.

What do we recommend you do?

The body must introduce monthly or quarterly budget monitoring as necessary to ensure it has the
resources avaliable prior to any expenditure being authorised.

The body has a responsibility for proper stewardship of their financial affairs and to conduct their
affairs properly. Budget monitoring is an essential tool of the body as it enables the body to ensure
the proper control of the public money it is entrusted to spend.

Further guidance on this matter can be obtained from the following source(s):

Governance and Accountability in Local Councils in England and Wales - A Practioners Guide,
NALC/0OVW/SLCC

Local Government Act 2003 - Office of Public Sector information website
(www.opsi.gov.uk/acts/acts2003/ukpga_20030026_en_1)

Page 23



The Charter Trustees for the City of Durham

The following issue(s) have been raised to assist the body. The body is recommended to take
action on the following issue(s) to ensure that the body acts within its statutory and regulatory
framework.

Expenditure powers

What is the issue?

The body has received donations into its bank account during the year for the Mayor's Appeal which
have subsequently been donated to charitable organisations. Whilst these payments may be
considered part of the functions of the Mayoral office and no public funds have been used, the body
has not fully demonstrated in correspondence that it does have the specific legal power to both
receive and spend the funds or shown prior considerations before engaging in the transaction.

Why has this issue been raised?

The body is at risk of acting outside of its legal powers.

What do we recommend you do?

The body must always ensure that it acts solely within its specified legal powers. It is recommended
that expenditure powers are minuted before incurring any expenditure, irrespective of how the
transactions have been funded. The body should ensure it is financed in accordance with its legal
powers.

Further guidance on this matter can be obtained from the following source(s):

The Charter Trustees Regulations 2009.

No other matters came to our attention.

For and on behalf of
BDO LLP

Date: 30 November 2011

Page 24



The Charter Trustees for the City of Durham 2011/12

Ref: A1 /CHAR43

It is a requirement for smaller relevant bodies to have their accounts approved by 30 June and we aim
to complete the audit by 30 September. If you do not wish to specify a particular date range for your
audit, you will be allocated a date by us. In addition if a particular date becomes full, an alternative
date will be selected. We reserve the right to select alternative dates to ensure all audits are
completed by 30 September. Please retain a copy of the dates you request.

We have also enclosed your current contact details form. Please retain this form, if a change occurs
during the year amend and return the form to us so we can update the details.

Please indicate which batch of dates would be preferable for the audit for the year ending 31 March
2012.

Please ensure you allow sufficient time for the Annual Return, Section 1 and Section 2 to be
completed and approved at a council meeting and for Section 4 to be completed by your internal
auditor. You may wish to liaise with your internal auditor prior to completing this form.

NB: It is preferable to ensure the Annual Return is completed and approved prior to the records
being made available to the public.
(Tick box for preferred dates)

v Display Available Audit
From To From To Date
202/04/12- 15/04/12 16/04/12 - 14/05/12 18/05/12
EO9/O4/12-22/04/12 23/04/12 - 21/05/12 25/05/12
Ej 16/04/12 - 29/04/12 30/04/12 - 29/05/12 01/06/12
j 23/04/12 - 06/05/12 08/05/12 - 05/06/12 08/06/12
230/04/12-13/05/12 14/05/12 - 11/06/12 15/06/12
:O7/05/12-20/05/12 21/05/12 - 18/06/12 22/06/12
: 14/05/12 - 27/05/12 29/05/12 - 25/06/12 29/06/12
:21/05/12-03/06/12 04/06/12 - 29/06/12 06/07/12

Page 25



The Charter Trustees for the City of Durham

Ref: A1 / CHAR43
Contact Details

IMPORTANT:

2011/12

1) Please check the name of the smaller relevant body and the associated contact details and
return any amendments to us immediately.

2) Please ensure you provide us with the contact details for the Chairperson.

3) If there are no changes please retain the form and only return if a change takes place during

the year.

Title:
Initials:
Surname:

Position:

Address Line 1:
Address Line 2:
Address Line 3:

Town/City
County:
Postcode:
Home Tel:
Work Tel:
Fax:
Mobile:

Email:

Mrs

S

Spence

Clerk

Durham County Council

County Hall

DURHAM

County Durham

DH1 5UL

#mailto:sharon.spence@durham.gov.uk#

Supplementary Contact

Title:
Initials:
Surname:

Position:

Address Line 1:
Address Line 2:
Address Line 3:

Town/City
County:
Postcode:
Home Tel:
Work Tel:
Fax:
Mobiie:

Email:

Page 26



CLIENT SATISFACTION SURVEY
AUDITS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

This survey relates to the audit for the year ended 31 March 2011. We would be grateful if you could spend 5 minutes of your
time to complete this survey and return it to us with your remittance in the enclosed freepost envelope. This is your
opportunity to have your say and provide us with ways to improve our service.

Client service

1. Out of 10, how would you rate your experience with BDO LLP during the audit for the year ended /10
31 March 20117

2. Overall, has the service improved?

Improved B Same © Deteriorated @  No opinion B

Communication during audit

if you received communication during the audit please answer the following questions, if not proceed to Q5.

3. How would you rate our timeliness in contacting you with queries relating to the audit, after your initial
submission?

Good B Average O Poor © No opinion ©
4, How would you rate the clarity of our requests or questions?
Clear O Average o Confusing © No opinion ©
Completion
5. If any matters were brought to your attention on completion of the audit, did you find the content helpful
and easy to understand?
Helpful o Fairly Helpful ©  Confusing D No opinion D
6. How would you rate our service in terms of value for money?
Good P Average O Poor © No opinion D
7. Arektlgere any areas of our service you would like improved or any recommendations you would like to
make?

Please detail....

Reference material

8. How would you rate the overall layout of the Audit Briefing?

Good 2 Average O Poor O No opinion B

A120113854

Page 27



9. How would you rate the technical content of the Audit Briefing?

Good © Average © Poor o No opinion B

10. Are there any topics you would like us to cover in future years?

Please detail....

1. How useful was the extranet?
Useful o Fairly useful B No use ONo opinion &
12. Are there any other useful documents you would like us to consider adding to the extranet?

Please detail....

General Information or Assistance

13. If you contacted the Local Council team for general information or assistance, how satisfied were you with
the outcome?

Satisfied B Fairly satisfied © Dissatisfied © No opinion B

Thank you for your time.

(Optional) Name: Council:

A120113954

Page 28



NOTES FOR THE RESPONSIBLE FINANCIAL OFFICER

In accordance with the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 -
As soon as possible after conclusion of audit, notice must be given as follows:

Display the Notice of Conclusion of Audit in one or more conspicuous places advising that the
audit has been completed. The notice must be displayed for at least 14 days.

The Council can either display the notice and the requisite information
or
display the notice only and make available, by appointment, the requisite information.

The requisite information consists of;

Section 1 to 3 of the Annual Return
Issues arising from the audit (if any)

In all cases, ensure that copies of the statement of accounts/annual return are made
available for purchase at a reasonable sum.

Page 29



) gcl)'rﬁ%ission

Small Bodies in England
Annual return for the year
31 March 2017

Smali relevant bodies in England with an annual turnover of £1 million or less must
complete an annual return summarising their annual activities at the end of each
financial year.

The annual return on the following pages is made up of four sections:
- Sections 1 and 2 are to be completed by the person nominated by the bodly.
- Saction 3 will be completed by the external auditor. '

- Section 4 is to be completed by the body’s internal audit provider.
Each body must ensure this annual return is approved no later than 30 June 2011.

Completing your annual return
Guidance notes, including a completion checklist, are provided on page 6 and at relevant
points in the annual return.

Please complete all sections highlighted in red. Do not leave any red box blank. Incomplete
or incorrect returns may require additional external audit work and incur additional costs.

Please send the annual return, together with your bank reconciliation as at 31 March 2011,
an explanation of any significant year on year variances in the accounting statements and
any additional information requested, to your appointed externai auditor by the due date.

If required, your auditor will identify and ask for any documents needed for audit. Unless
requested, please do not send any original financial records to the external auditor.

Audited and certified annual returns will be returned to the body for publication or public
display of sections 1, 2 and 3.

It should not be necessary for you to contact the external auditor or the Audit Commission
directly for guidance.

More guidance on completing this annual return is available in the Practitioners’ Guides for
either local councils or internal drainage boards. These publications may be downloaded from
the National Association of Local Councils (NALC) or Society of Local Council Clerks (SLCC)
websites (www.nalc.gov.uk or www.slce.co.uk) or from the members area of the Association of
Drainage Authorities website (www.ada.org.uk).

P
age 30 Page 1 of 6



Section 1 - Accounting statements for:

/e Cenelme frus! foe Awe L' o Duprar]

1 Balances
brought forward |

O | . iy,080

Total balances and reserves at the beginning of the year as
recorded in the body’s financial records. Value must agree to
Box 7 of previous year.

2 (+) Income from
local taxation
and/or levy

i

Total amount of local tax and/or levy received or receivable in the
year including funding from a sponsoring body.

3 (+) Total other

Total income or receipts as recorded in the cashbook less income

receipts ki L’?‘T 3 9,507 | from taxation and/or levy {line 2). Include any grants received here.
4 (-) Staff costs ! 2 ‘ Total expenditure or payments made to and on behalf of all body
P Kty Laﬂ | k5,020 |employees. Include salaries and wages, PAYE and NI (employees
P and employers), pension contributions and employment expenses.
5 (4 l_oén : Total expenditure or payments of capital and interest made during
interest/capital o the year on the body’s borrowings (if any).
repayments 0
6 (-) All other Total expenditure or payments as recorded in the cashbook less
ayments 7% ObLN | E9(13 | staff costs (ine 4) and loan interest/capital repayments (ine 5).
pay! i
7 (=) Balances , ‘ Total balances and reserves at the end of the year.
carried forward 1o, 080 25 L50 | Must equal (1+2+3) — (4+5+6)

8 Total cash and
short term
investments

RN =17

1 The sum of all current and deposit bank accounts, cash holdings
and short term investments held as at 31 March — to agree with
bank reconciliation.

9 Total fixed assets
and long term |

The recorded book value at 31 March of all fixed assets owned by
the body and any other long term assets e.g. loans to third parties

assets V) (0] and any long-term investments.
10 Total borrowings | The outstanding capital balance as at 31 March of all loans from
1 0 0 third parties (including PWLB).

| certify that for the year ended 31 March 2011
the accounting statements in this annual return
present fairly the financial position of the body
and its income and expenditure, or properly
present receipts and payments, as the case may
be.

Signed by Responsible Financial Officer:

| confirm that these accounting statements were
approved by the body on:
|

L aglob (i |
and recorded as minute reference:

3 |
Signed by Chair of meeting approving these

T YRSt | | accounting statements:
7 o [ ‘:,f" \ }
Date|  #% |96 [R0i) | ! A
o/ | _
7 Date| 480G |1 |
Page 2 of 6

Page 31



Section 2 - Annual governance statement

We acknowledge as the members of | Aihs Lupe/ze /I,ELIQ':/ e b ihz 0.7-1 of Duenar] |

our responsibility for ensuring that there is a sound system of internal control, including the
preparation of the accounting statements. We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, with
respect to the accounting statements for the year ended 31 March 2011, that:

1 We have approved the accounting statements prepared in ; prepared its accounting statements in the
accordance with the requirements of the Accounts and o way prescribed by law.
Audit Regulations and proper practices. Yes

2 We have maintained an adequate system of internal control, rmade proper arrangements and accepted
including measures designed to prevent and detect fraud | responsibility for safeguarding the public
and corruption and reviewed its effectiveness. - Nes money and resources in its charge.

3 We have taken all reasonable steps to assure ourselves " has only done things that it has the legal
that there are no matters of actual or potential non- . I power to do and has conformed to codes
compliance with laws, regulations and codes of practice of practice and standards in the way it has
that could have a significant financial effect on the ability of | done so.
the body to conduct its business or on its finances. boyeg

4 We have provided proper opportunity during the year for ’ during the year has given all persons
the exercise of electors’ rights in accordance with the ! interested the opportunity to inspect and
requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations. L YiEs ask questions about the body’s accounts.

5 We have carried out an assessment of the risks facing the | considered the financial and other risks it

i .
body and taken appropriate steps to manage those risks, | faces and has dealt with them properly.
including the introduction of internal controls and/or '
external insurance cover where required. LoMes

6 We have maintained throughout the year an adequate and 1' arranged for a competent person,
effective system of internal audit of the body’s accounting independent of the financial controls and
records and control systems. 7,_6_5 procedures, to give an objective view on

whether internal controls meet the needs of
the body.
i

7 We have taken appropriate action on all matters raised in | responded to matters brought to its
reports from internal and external audit. \/ £3 attention by internal and external audit.

8 We have considered whether any litigation, liabilities or disclosed everything it should have about
commitments, events or transactions, occurring either its business activity during the year
during or after the year-end, have a financial impact on the | including events taking place after the year-
body and where appropriate have included them in the Yes end if relevant.
accounting statements. i

This annual governance statement is approved Signed by:

by the body and recorded as minute reference 0 i

; A i Chair | ./@4// |

! ! ,

dated| 28 [ob [i }
l T
dated | agfo6fil | Signed by:

})
Clerk | = e

|
f |
dated | 29[ow /il |

*Note: Please provide explanations to the external auditor on a separate sheet for each ‘No’ response
that has been given; and describe what action is being taken to address the weaknesses identified.

Page 3 of 6
Page 32



Section 3 - External auditor’s certificate and opinion

Certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of the annual return for the year ended 31 March 2011 of

.
€% WY Y R - = )
s }};g’/ AT cTISTYES o e W TY o O uitide

O

Respective responsibilities of the body and the auditor

The body is responsible for ensuring that its financial management is adequate and effective and that
it has a sound system of internal control. The body prepares an annual return in accordance with
proper practices which:

e  summarises the accounting records for the year ended 31 March 2011; and
»  confirms and provides assurance on those matters that are important to our audit responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit in accordance with guidance issued by the Audit Commission
and, on the basis of our review of the annual return and supporting information, to report whether any
matters that come to our attention give cause for concern that relevant legislation and regulatory
requirements have not been met.

External auditor’s report

(Except for the matters reported below)* on the basis of our review, in our opinion the information in
the annual return is in accordance with proper practices and no matters have come to our attention
giving cause for concern that relevant legislation and regulatory requirements have not been met.

(*delete-as-appropriate).

, . oft
The noov's accounts wers overdrawn at 31 March in contravention of the Local M@,@@i
Gavernment Aot 2003, Schedule 1, Paragraph 2(3). W\ \
Governmaent Act 2003, & graph 2(3) ‘@%@;1\?&@@@

(continue on a separate sheet if required)

Other matters not affecting our opinion which we draw to the attention of the body:

(continue on a separate sheet if required)

External auditor’s signature | Yoo ]
External auditor’s name ‘ BDO LLP Southa J Date [ o/t S }
Unitad C 7

Note: The auditor signing this page has been appointed by the Audit Commission and is reporting to
you that they have carried out and completed all the work that is required of them by law. For further
i information please refer to the Audit Commission’s publication entitied Statement of Responsibilities of
’ Auditors and of Audited Small Bodijes.

Page 4 of 6
Page 33

BDO LLF is & Limited Habitits wo ot mhin registerad in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).



Section 4 - Annual internal audit report to

ya . p p
__Croeder 4Rust For Mz Cil4 of Dugear]
The body’s internal audit, acting independently and on the basis of an assessment of risk, carried out
a selective assessment of compliance with relevant procedures and controls expected to be in
operation during the financial year ended 31 March 2011.

Internal audit has been carried out in accordance with the body’s needs and planned coverage.

On the basis of the findings in the areas examined, the internal audit conclusions are summarised in
this table. Set out below are the objectives of internal control and alongside are the internal audit
conclusions on whether, in all significant respects, the control objectives were being

achieved throughout the financial year to a standard adequate to meet the needs of the body.

A Appropriate accounting records have been kept properly throughout the year. ; }/és’

‘B The body’s financial regulations have been met, payments were supported by invoices, : \/ s

i expenditure was approved and VAT was appropriately accounted for, : |

C The body assessed the significant risks to achieving its objectives and reviewed the CIVetoden 1w Aodif
adequacy of arrangements to manage these. ( A fo f< Zot2z / ,g

D The annual taxation or levy or funding requirement resulted from an adequate budgetary ] NELUDED Aod M’

: process; progress against the budget was regularly monitored; and reserves were An o 2012 / 13 <
appropriate. ; ,

E Expected income was fully received, based on correct prices, properly recorded and y,

promptly banked; and VAT was appropriately accounted for. &7

F  Petty cash payments were properly supported by receipts, expenditure was approved ‘s ;

i and VAT appropriately accounted for. ~ L{

G Salaries to employees and allowances to members were paid in accordance with body ' Y ¢s

approvals, and PAYE and NI requirements were properly applied. ;

H Asset and investments registers were complete and accurate and properly maintained. : pba/( k?? ek Rl

I Periodic and year-end bank account reconciliations were properly carried out. : %’4{

J Accounting statements prepared during the year were prepared on the correct ,
accounting basis {receipts and payments or income and expenditure), agreed to the \.(é S . i
cash book, were supported by an adequate audit trail from underlying records, and,
where appropriate, debtors and creditors were properly recorded. |

For any other risk areas identified by the bodly (iist any other risk areas below or on separate sheets if needed) adequate
controls existed:

Name of person who carried out the internal audit: | Peqel fhcicSor ]

Signature of person who carried out the internal audit: | ( doclboon | Date:[3e /4 [zo11]

*Note: If the response is ‘no’ please state the implications and action being taken to address any
weakness in control identified (add separate sheets if needed).

**Note: If the response is ‘not covered’ please state when the most recent internal audit work was done
in this area and when it is.next planned, or, if coverage is not required, internal audit must explain why
not (add separate sheets if needed).

Page 34 Page 5 0of 6



Section 4 - Annual internal audit report to

ya , e p
Cuneder GRust for Jwz (il of DureHar] |
The body’s internal audit, acting independently and on the basis of an assessment of risk, carried out
a selective assessment of compliance with relevant procedures and controls expected to be in
operation during the financial year ended 31 March 2011.

Internal audit has been carried out in accordance with the body’s needs and planned coverage.

On the basis of the findings in the areas examined, the internal audit conclusions are summarised in
this table. Set out below are the objectives of internal control and alongside are the internal audit
conclusions on whether, in all significant respects, the control objectives were being

achieved throughout the financial year to a standard adequate to meet the needs of the body.

-A  Appropriate accounting records have been kept properly throughout the year. : Yé 'S

‘B The body’s financial regulations have been met, payments were supported by invoices, \/ / ¢
expenditure was approved and VAT was appropriately accounted for. “

'C The body assessed the significant risks to achieving its objectives and reviewed the Velonen 1N Aodi {
adequacy of arrangements to manage these. _ f’ A Fok Zef2 I i3

D The annual taxation or levy or funding requirement resulted from an adequate budgetary jNELUDED 1M doD |

: process; progress against the budget was regularly monitored; and reserves were Ao Eal 20(2 / 3
appropriate.

E Expected income was fully received, based on correct prices, properly recorded and g

promptly banked; and VAT was appropriately accounted for. &9

IF Petty cash payments were properly supported by receipts, expenditure was approved ¢

? and VAT appropriately accounted for. qes

G Salaries to employees and allowances to members were paid in accordance with body _ \f £s

‘ approvals, and PAYE and NI requirements were properly applied. ; ]

H Asset and investments registers were complete and accurate and properly maintained. = g0 atfuieaB il |

| Periodic and year-end bank account reconciliations were properly carried out. : \fQ§

;J Accounting statements prepared during the year were prepared on the correct
accounting basis (receipts and payments or income and expenditure), agreed to the \{,é < .
cash book, were supported by an adequate audit trail from underlying records, and,
where appropriate, debtors and creditors were properly recorded.

For any other risk areas identified by the body (list any other risk areas below or on separate sheets if needed) adequate
controls existed:

Name of person who carried out the internal audit: | feacg AhckSor |

Signature of person who carried out the internal audit: | { fcfbecn~ | Date: | 3¢ /4

*Note: If the response is ‘no” please state the implications and action being taken to address any
weakness in control identified (add separate sheets if needed).

**Note: If the respohse is ‘not covered’ please state when the most recent internal audit work was done
in this area and when it is_.next planned, or, if coverage is not required, internal audit must explain why
not (add separate sheets if needed).

Page 5 of 6 Page 35



Guidance notes on completing the 2011 annual return

1

Proper practices for preparing this annual return are found in the Practitioners’ Guides*. These
publications are regularly updated and contain everything you should need to prepare successfully for
your financial year-end and the subsequent audit. Both NALC and SLCC have helplines should you
wish to talk through any problem you may encounter.

Please make sure that your annual return is complete (i.e. no empty red boxes), and is properly
signed and dated. Avoid making any amendments to the completed return. But, if this is
unavoidable, make sure the amendments are approved by the body, properly initialled and an
explanation for them is provided to the auditor. Annual returns containing unapproved or unexplained
amendments will be returned unaudited and may incur additional costs.

Use the checklist provided below. Use a second pair of eyes, perhaps a member or the Chair,
to review your annual return for completeness before sending it off to the auditor.

Please do not send the auditor any information not specifically asked for. Doing so is not helpful.
However, you must advise the auditor of any change in Clerk, Responsible Financial Officer or Chair.

Make sure that the copy of the bank reconciliation which you send to your auditor with the annual
return covers all your bank accounts. If your body holds any short-term investments, please note their
value on the bank reconciliation. The auditor should be able to agree your bank reconciliation to Box 8
on the Statement of Accounts. You must provide an explanation for any difference between Box 7
and Box 8. More help on bank reconciliation is available in the Practitioners’ Guides*.

Please explain fully significant variances in the accounting statements. Do not just send in a copy of
your detailed accounting records instead of this explanation. The auditor wants to know that you
understand the reasons for all variances. Please include a complete analysis to support your
explanation. There are a number of examples provided in the Practitioners’ Guides* to assist you.

If the auditor has to review unsolicited information, or receives an incomplete bank reconciliation, or you
do not fully explain variances, this may incur additional costs for which the auditor will make a charge.

Please make sure that your accounting statements add up! Also please ensure that the balance
carried forward from the previous year (Box 7 of 2010) equals the balance brought forward in the
current year (Box 1 of 2011).

Do not complete section 3. The external auditor will complete it at the conclusion of their audit.

All red boxes have been completed?
All sections All information requested by the external auditor has been sent with this annual
return? Please refer to your notice of audit.
Approval by the bedy confirmed by signature of Chair of meeting approving the
accounting statements?
Section 1 An explanation of significant variations from last year to this year is provided?
Bank reconciliation as at 31 March 2011 agreed to Box 87
An explanation of any difference between Box 7 and Box 8 is provided?
Section 2 For any statement to which the response is ‘no’, an explanation is provided?
Section 4 All red boxes completed by internal audit and explanations provided?
*Note: Governance and Accountability for Local Councils in England - A Practitioners’ Guides, is
available from NALC and SLCC representatives or Governance and Accountability for Internal Drainage
Boards in England — A Practitioners’. Guides, is available from the ADA at The Association of Drainage
Authorities, 12 Cranes Drive, Surbiton, Surrey, KT5 8AL or from the NALC, SLCC or ADA websites - see
page 1 for addresses.

RA92R% ode: LOT3669 Page 6 of 6



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Meeting held on 18 January 2012.
	4 Mayor - Travelling and Subsistence.
	Appendix A

	5 Renewal of Insurance Policy.
	6 Royal Marine Band Service.
	7 Audit for the year ended 31 March 2011.
	BDO Document


